FILED

OCT 17 1983

SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION,

Appellant,

vs.

GERALD L. GUNTER,
JOSEPH P. CRESSE and
JOHN R. MARKS, III, in
their official capacity as
and constituting the Florida
Public Service Commission,

Appellee.

Casier Deputy Clork

Appeal from an order of the Florida Public Service Commission

CASE NO. 64,209

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

CARLTON, FIELDS, WARD, EMMANUEL, SMITH & CUTLER, P. A. Post Office Box 3239
Tampa, Florida 33601
(813) 223-5366

Sylvia H. Walbolt Gregory G. Jones

and

Office of the General Counsel FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION Post Office Box 14042 St. Petersburg, Florida 33733 (813) 866-5184

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant Florida Power Corporation will be referred to in this brief as "FPC" or "the Company." Appellee Florida Public Service Commission will be referred to as "the PSC" or "the Commission."

References to the record on appeal will be indicated as "R." References to the transcript of the hearings will be indicated as "Tr." Commission Order No. 9775, dated January 30, 1981, will be referred to as the "O." and a copy is set forth in the Appendix to this Brief at Tab 1. The opinion of the Florida Supreme Court in this case, dated December 16, 1982, will be referred to as the "Op." and a copy is set forth in the Appendix at Tab 2. Commission Order No. 12240, dated July 13, 1983, will be referred to as the "R.O." and a copy is set forth in the Appendix at Tab 4. All references to the Appendix are designated "A. Tab ___."

All emphasis is supplied unless otherwise noted.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

By Order No. 8482 dated September 15, 1978, the Florida Public Service Commission instituted an investigation of the March 1978 "loose parts" outage of FPC's Crystal River nuclear plant. The investigation ultimately focused upon an incident occurring during that outage when a test weight was accidentally dropped on a stored fuel assembly.

By Order No. 9775 dated January 30, 1981, the Commission imposed responsibility for this incident upon FPC's management, holding that "policies, decisions and procedures which were undisputedly the functions of management were lacking in this instance." [0. 5; A. Tab 1]. In particular, the Commission found that "the single most damaging indictment of those responsible for the activity" was their failure to classify the work as "safety-related" and to follow the stringent procedures required for the performance of such work. 1/ [0. 6]. The Commission concluded that FPC should be responsible for the incremental replacement fuel costs incurred during the period of the outage attributable to this incident.

^{1/} The term "safety-related" refers to "work involving the risk that radioactive material might be released outside the plant." [Op. 3; A. Tab 2].

Florida Power witnesses testified that this incident extended the original outage by a total of 14 days. No contrary evidence was presented. The Commission's engineering and legal staffs both recommended that the refund be limited to the fuel costs incurred during that 14 day period. [R. 351]. The Commission rejected this uncontroverted evidence and instead held that Florida Power failed to prove that the time expended on certain other activities was necessary. [O. 7]. On this basis, the Commission concluded that "55 days of the forced outage must be associated with the dropped test weight incident." [O. 10].

Based on these findings, the Commission required Florida Power to refund \$11,056,000 in replacement fuel costs to its customers. $\frac{2}{}$

On December 16, 1982, this Court reversed the

Commission's Order. Florida Power Corporation v. Public Service

Commission, 424 So. 2d 745 (Fla. 1982). [A. Tab. 2]. Among
other things, the Court rejected the PSC's "post-accident"
determination that this test activity should have been labeled

"safety-related," stating that:

 $[\]frac{2}{5}$ The initial refund of \$12,859,251 was later reduced to \$11,056,000. Order No. 9936, dated April 8, 1981.

Our independent review of the record discloses that the particular task which resulted in the accident was but a small part of the extended repairs to the fuel transfer mechanism. The record further indicates that the repair work, per se, was not safety-related, and this was, in part, why the use of the test weight was not recognized as being safety-related. [Op. 3].

The Court concluded that the Commission therefore incorrectly applied nuclear safety considerations which involved "a very different risk and a much higher standard of care than were involved in this case." [Op. 4].

The Court further held that the PSC improperly relied upon the notice of violation issued by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC), and upon the report of FPC's nuclear general review committee (NGRC), a committee set up pursuant to NRC requirements. Noting that both reports were issued <u>after</u> the accident, the Court declared that "hindsight should not serve as the basis for liability in this instance." [Op. 4]. The Court also noted that both reports focused on nuclear safety-related concerns. Finally, the Court emphasized that the purpose of the NGRC's report was "not to find fault" but to suggest improved procedures <u>after</u> an accident occurs. <u>Id</u>. The Court concluded as follows:

After a careful review of the record and of the PSC's order no. 9775, we believe that the PSC relied excessively on the NGRC report and the NRC notice of violation. While these documents are undoubtedly useful for numerous purposes, they should not serve as the primary source of evidence in a fault-finding determination. Such use of these documents would be analogous to using evidence of subsequent repairs and design modifications for the purpose of showing that the original design was faulty. This would clearly violate Florida's strong public policy in favor of post accident investigations. [Op. 4.]

Without reaching the other points on appeal, the Court reversed the order and remanded this cause to the PSC "for reconsideration in light of the views expressed in this opinion." [Op. 4].

On remand, briefs were filed with the Commission and oral argument was held on March 1, 1983. [A. Tab. 3]. Oral argument related almost exclusively to the question whether the PSC could rely on remand on the NRC and NGRC reports. [R. Vol. XIII].

By Order No. 12240 dated July 13, 1983, the Commission again imposed responsibility upon FPC management for this incident. [A. Tab. 4]. The Commission stated that "independent of the NRC and NGRC documents, . . . the procedures governing the work activity involving the use of the test weight device were deficient, [and] the planning and supervision of the project were inadequate. . . " [R.O. 1]. The Commission further concluded that it could rely on the NRC and NGRC documents "as

secondary sources of evidence in requiring a refund in this case." Id. Finally, the Commission incorporated its earlier finding that this incident delayed the outage by 55 days.

Two issues are presented on appeal. First, whether, in light of this Court's decision, the Commission correctly held Florida Power management responsible for the dropped test weight incident. Second, whether the Commission correctly held that this incident extended the outage by 55 days.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On March 3, 1978, Florida Power's nuclear unit was shut down to investigate the cause of certain alarms. It was discovered that one of the burnable poison rod assemblies had broken loose. Many of the individual rods had broken off, and thousands of pieces of radioactive debris from the broken rods were disbursed throughout the reactor coolant system.

Considerable damage resulted to one of the unit's steam generators that had to be assessed and repaired. A major cleanup of the system was also required which necessitated the removal of all fuel from the reactor core.

After the reactor core had been defueled and the debris removed, Florida Power began to replace the fuel assemblies in the reactor. It was able to replace only a few of them before

various malfunctions in a fuel transfer mechanism required extensive repair. After these repairs were completed, it was decided that the mechanism should be tested with a load before continuing to reload the fuel assemblies. Plant personnel decided to use a test weight for this purpose. The test weight was a stainless steel pipe which weighed about 2080 pounds and had a eyebolt welded on the top of it. [Tr. 945, 961-962, 1411].

At the time the test weight activity was planned, it was not classified as "safety-related" work. [Tr. 971, 1042-1043, 1047]. As this Court emphasized, the test was "but a small part of the extended repairs to the fuel transfer mechanism." [Op. 3]. The fact that those overall repairs were not safety-related was "in part why the use of the test weight was not recognized as being safety-related." Id.

On June 8, a work crew used underwater divers in conjunction with shackles, cables and a crane to lower the test weight onto the fuel transfer mechanism. The divers removed the shackles and the mechanism was tested. At the end of the

^{3/} The fuel transfer mechanism consists of two motor-driven carriages used to carry fuel assemblies on an underwater track through a canal between the reactor building and a pool of water where the fuel assemblies were stored. [Tr. 957].

shift, the test weight was lowered into the pool again and the crane was removed. [Tr. 950-970].

When the work crew on the next shift arrived on June 9 to remove the test weight, the employee in charge, a plant engineer, instructed the crew to use a "fish hook" to lift the test weight. [Tr. 871]. This hook was designed to lift 150 pounds but was not labeled as to capacity. [Tr. 1289, 1305]. The hook had been rejected for use during the first shift, despite similar instructions to use it, because the crew concluded that it would not hold the test weight. [Tr. 959-969, 985].

Although the second shift did not know that the first shift had not used the hook, the second crew independently questioned its suitability for this task. [Tr. 714, 942-943, 1021-1022, 1203, 1302, 1317-1318]. Because divers were not available to re-connect the shackles to the test weight, the crew attempted to use the hook anyway after briefly lifting the test weight to see if it would hold. [Tr. 917-918, 1025, 1042, 1279]. As the crew attempted to lift the test weight, the hook began to straighten and the test weight fell on a stored fuel assembly. [Tr. 1026-1029].

As a result of this incident, four fuel assemblies had to be replaced. [Tr. 140]. The unit's start-up was delayed for 14 days because the replacement assemblies were not on site

earlier. $\frac{4}{}$ [Tr. 535-537]. The evidence was uncontroverted that this was the <u>only</u> effect on the duration of the outage. [Tr. 389-390, 530-531, 680-683, 903, 1547, 1602, 1664].

Despite this evidence, the Commission found that this incident delayed the unit's start-up by 55 days. 5/ Finding that the time spent in certain activities was not necessary, the Commission held that that time must be attributable to the dropped test weight incident. [R.O. 16-18]. In so holding, the Commission simply second-guessed FPC's activities during this first-of-a-kind repair activity.

As a result of the dispersal of radioactive debris throughout the system, a massive clean-up was required. Repairs were also being made in connection with the damage caused to the steam generator. Other repairs and maintenance were being performed as well in a highly radioactive environment. Great attention was necessary at all times to radiological shielding of personnel and decontamination-related activities.

^{4/} This delay occurred because the lid on the reactor had to be bolted shut before the fill and vent activity could begin. Ordinarily the reactor would have been closed while other "critical path" activities were being performed. That could not be done here because the reactor had to be left open to install the replacement assemblies. The 14 days required to install the assemblies and close the reactor correspondingly delayed the commencement of the fill and vent activity.

^{5/} The unit went back into operation 77 days later than the start-up date which had been projected at earlier stages. The Commission specifically found 22 days of this time was required for activities unrelated to the incident.

Early in the outage, critical path schedules were prepared estimating the time it would take to perform these complex activities. Those schedules were later relied on by the Commission in finding that the test weight incident delayed start-up by 55 days. However, those early schedules were, by necessity, nothing more than a tentative plan involving considerable guesswork. [Tr. 99, 690, 692, 1546, 1699, 1701]. The ejection of the burnable poison rod assembly in its entirety from the reactor core was the <u>first</u> such incident in the industry. [Tr. 60, 1701]. In addition, this unit had been operating for less than a year, and this was FPC's first experience with the removal and replacement of fuel in the reactor. [Tr. 1704].

Moreover, those schedules allowed no leeway for any complications in the repair or cleanup work; this was done by design in an effort to assure that materials and equipment would be available when needed. [Tr. 1699, 1701]. Not unexpectedly, there were in fact a number of unanticipated events during the complex repair and clean-up activities which delayed the projected start-up date. [Tr. 126, 387, 544, 1701].

First, the removal of the burnable poison rod debris from the reactor turned out to be much more difficult and time consuming than initially expected, and this was not completed

until May 19 rather than May 8 as earlier scheduled. [Tr. 126, 544, 675-676, 1571; Exhibit No. 40].

Second, the fuel transfer mechanism malfunctioned and extensive repairs had to be made to it. [Tr. 1273, 1584-1586]. As a result, refueling was not completed until June 17, 1978, a delay of 15 days from the earlier schedule. [Tr. 677; Exhibit No. 40].

Third, a decay heat pump failed during the outage. Since the pump failure was safety-related, FPC's procedures, which were adopted pursuant to NRC regulations, required various analyses to be completed before corrective measures could be taken. [Tr. 1595, 1685, 1687, 1706, 1750-1751]. This caused an additional 15-day delay in plant start-up. [Tr. 577].

Notwithstanding the uncontroverted evidence that those three activities were all necessary to start-up, the Commission instead attributed the 41 days devoted to those activities to the test weight incident. Adding those 41 days to the 14-day delay which was acknowledged to have been caused by the incident, the Commission attributed a total delay in start-up of 55 days to that incident. It accordingly required FPC management to absorb over \$11 million in replacement fuel costs incurred during that period.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

The Commission's order on remand has the same errors as the original order reversed by this Court.

a. Introduction

It is settled that there must be management imprudence before a utility's expenses may be disallowed. Management consists of the company's officers and directors. Missouri ex. rel. Southwestern Bell Tel. Co. v. Public Service Comm'n, 262 U.S. 276, 289, 43 S.Ct. 544, 67 L.Ed. 981 (1923); Metropolitan Dade County Water & Sewer Brd. v. Community Utilities Corp., 200 So.2d 831 (Fla. 3d DCA 1967). Errors of plant employees are not a legally sufficient basis upon which to disallow a utility's operating costs.

Upon the initial appeal, this Court directly addressed the issue of alleged management responsibility for the test weight incident. The Court specifically rejected the Commission's finding that management was imprudent in failing to treat this work as safety-related. [Op. 3]. The Court also found that the Commission improperly relied on NRC and NGRC post-accident evaluations because, among other things, those reports were based on hindsight and on nuclear safety

considerations presenting "a very different risk and a much higher standard of care than were involved in this case." [Op. 3-4]. Based upon its own "independent review of the record," this Court reversed the Commission's findings and remanded for reconsideration in light of the Court's opinion. [Op. 4].

Although the Commission pays lip service to this Court's decision, the Commission repeats exactly the same errors it made in its first order. The Commission again relies on the post-accident reports of the NRC and NGRC as well as its perfect "hindsight" view of the incident. Even more importantly, it has again imposed a higher, "safety-related" standard of care for this minor part of the lengthy, complex repairs to the fuel transfer mechanism -- despite this Court's finding that such a standard should not be applied here.

For instance, the Commission once again finds management imprudence as a result of deficiencies in FPC's procedures for labeling hooks. [R.O. 8]. Although the Commission purports to now make that finding on "primary" evidence other than the NRC and NGRC reports, the <u>only</u> "primary" evidence cited for that finding relates <u>directly</u> to the NRC citation for improper safety-related procedures.

As its so-called "primary" evidence of management imprudence, the Commission quotes a statement by Mr. Beatty,

the plant manager, that "our internal procedure was not adequate enough to preclude this happening because it did not require the testing of the hooks and it should have." [R.O. 9]. That quote is taken blatantly out of context. The statement was made in direct response to a series of questions concerning the deficiencies in FPC's safety-related procedure SP-601 (governing the labeling of hooks) which were the basis for the NRC's notice of violation. $\frac{6}{}$ [Tr. 148-149].

In short, the Commission has once again relied on the NRC's after-the-fact investigation of a "safety-related" activity as a primary basis for imposing responsibility upon management. 7/
The Commission has done so in direct contravention of this Court's decision.

The Commission also points to various procedures which "might" have prevented this accident. These range from procedures stating the obvious -- "be sure to use qualified personnel on your work activities" -- to procedures detailing

 $[\]underline{6}$ / This series of questions is set out in its entirety in the Appendix to this Brief at Tab 5.

^{7/} Similarly, in the Staff recommendation which was approved by the Commission's order, Mr. Beatty's testimony that the procedures violated NRC regulations is expressly relied on as primary support for the finding of procedural deficiencies. [R.O. 33, Appendix A at 14; A. Tab 4].

the exact manner in which this test was to be performed. With the 20-20 vision of hindsight, it is, of course, a simple matter to pinpoint everything that might have been done to prevent the accident.

More importantly, the Commission has once again based its decision on FPC's failure to follow "safety-related" work requirements, despite this Court's <u>rejection</u> of the finding that the work should have been treated as safety-related. Although detailed written procedures are required for "safety-related" work, there is no evidence that this is normal industry practice for other activities. To the contrary, if written procedures had to be developed and followed for every minor work activity, outages would often be unnecessarily extended.

Incredibly, in this very case, the Commission penalized Florida Power for a delay experienced because it <u>followed</u> safety-related procedures. Although FPC's procedures required specific analyses to be performed before replacement of a safety-related pump could be made, the Commission second-guessed the necessity for those analyses and held that the time spent in that connection was not "justified." [R.O. 17]. Yet, at the same time that the Commission finds that the time required to comply with those procedures for safety-related repairs was not justified, the Commission is urging the necessity of such procedures for repairs which were not <u>per se</u> safety-related.

The Commission cannot have it both ways. If management prudence requires the preparation of written procedures for every activity performed in a nuclear plant because of the "potentially adverse economic consequences" of its shut-down, 8/ then this is a new, higher standard of care which in simple fairness should only be imposed prospectively. Most importantly, the Commission cannot then penalize management for the additional time required to prepare and comply with such procedures, and the customers must be prepared to absorb the extra replacement fuel costs incurred during that time.

The central fact which this Court expressly found and which the Commission continues to ignore is that this particular task "was but a small part of the extended repairs to the fuel transfer mechanism." [Op. 3]. As the Commission's own expert testified, it is not possible to write a procedure for every activity in the plant. [Tr. 1493]. In the final analysis, a company must inevitably rely on the judgment and common sense of its employees who are on the spot. [Tr. 1208, 1493].

Basically, the Comission does not point to new evidence on remand but instead simply recasts its original findings of

^{8/ [}R.O. 8].

management imprudence in different form. Those findings are no different in substance from its original findings. They are no more sufficient now than they were before.

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