IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION,

Appellant,

vs.

GERALD L. GUNTER,
JOSEPH P. CRESSE and
JOHN R. MARKS, III, in
their official capacity as
and constituting the Florida
Public Service Commission,

Appellee.

CASE NO. 64,209

FILED

NOV 7 1983 ~

SID J. WHITE CLERK SUPREME COURT

Cities Daouse Cines

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

WILLIAM S. BILENKY General Counsel

MICHAEL B. TWOMEY Staff Counsel

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 101 East Gaines Street Tallahassee, Florida 32301 904-487-2740

Attorneys for Appellee, Florida Public Service Commission

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION,

Appellant,

vs.

GERALD L. GUNTER,
JOSEPH P. CRESSE and

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellee, Public Service Commission has supplemented the Statement of the Case provided by the Appellant, Florida Power Corporation (FPC) because that recitation of the nature of this case is both incomplete and argumentative and, therefore, inadequate.

As the direct result of what has come to be known as the "loose parts" outage at FPC's Crystal River No. 3 (CR3) nuclear-powered generating unit, this Commission reopened FPC's request for a base rate increase tied to the capital costs and fuel savings associated with that nuclear unit. The Commission also announced its intention, through the entry of Order No. 8260, to determine whether all or any part of the higher replacement fuel costs necessitated by this outage should be borne by parties other than customers of the Utility.

During the, then, monthly fuel adjustment proceedings designed to allow the several utilities an opportunity to recoup their incurred fuel expenses, FPC sought to recover the higher fuel costs attributable to replacing the lost CR3 nuclear generation with more costly oil-generated electricity. In view of its announced intention to ascertain responsibility for the higher-cost, replacement power, the Commission allowed FPC to charge its customers these higher costs through its fuel adjustment charges but

ordered that the increased charges be collected subject to refund. Subsequently, the Commission removed the CR3 investigation from the fuel adjustment docket (74680-CI) and established Docket No. 780732-EU as an independent docket for the resolution of the loose parts outage. However, the Commission determined that its decision in the latter docket would be implemented through the charges approved in the fuel adjustment docket.

The Commission held hearings on the loose parts outage in St. Petersburg on October 17-18, and November 28, 1978. Following the submission of briefs and staff recommendations, FPC filed a motion to reopen the hearings in order to offer additional evidence on the subject of the impact of the dropping of a test weight device upon the duration of the 1978 forced outage.

In Order No. 8850, issued April 26, 1979, the Commission rejected FPC's assertion that any fuel adjustment refund must be based upon a finding that the Utility's actions with regard to the initial difficulties with the loose parts outage were improper, holding instead that any aspect of the Utility's decisions and activities which resulted in higher expenses were within the scope of the proceeding. In Order No. 8994, issued August 3, 1979, the Commission held that, as in conventional revenue requirement proceedings, the burden was upon the Utility to demonstrate that the

replacement fuel costs it proposed to recover were reasonably and prudently incurred. The final hearings in this case were held December 10-12, 1980.

On January 30, 1981, the Commission issued Order No. 9775, which found, among other things, that:

1) The vast majority of the forced outage, which ran from March 3, 1978 to September 18, 1978, was related to the failure of the lumped burnable poison rod assemblies inside the nuclear reactor. The source of this problem lay in a defect in the design of the latching mechanism of the burnable poison rods, which was a defect generic to all Babcock and Wilcox-designed nuclear units. Accordingly, FPC was not held responsible for the defect or the resulting replacement fuel costs but was cautioned by the Commission that:

we anticipate that Florida Power Corporation will seek the fullest possible recourse against B&W to recover damages sustained as a result of the failure of the LBPR's and intend to follow its progress in that regard.;

- 2) There was no basis for an adjustment of fuel cost recovery charges due to welding difficulties which extended the 1979 refueling outage by 19 days; and
- 3) FPC be required to refund to its customers the amount of \$12,859,251, plus interest, because:

Procedures governing the work activity involving the use of the test weight device were deficient, and the planning and supervision of the project were inadequate. These are functions of Company

management, and Florida Power Corporation must bear responsibility for the consequences of the incident in terms of replacement fuel costs.

Based upon the evidence, we find that 55-days of the forced outage must be associated with the dropped test weight incident. The Company's effort to attribute only 14-days to the incident is not supported by competent, credible evidence.

The refund amount was subsequently reduced to \$11,056,000, plus interest, by the issuance of Order No. 9936 on April 8, 1981.

FPC sought judicial review of Orders Nos. 9775 and 9936, and, on December 16, 1982, this Court reversed and remanded in Florida Power Corporation v. Public Service Commission, 424 So.2d 745 (1982). The Court's opinion consists of four pages and requires little summarization. However, the gist of the Court's opinion is contained in the opinion's concluding paragraphs, which state:

After a careful review of the record and of the PSC's order no. 9775, we believe that the PSC relied excessively on the NGRC report and the NRC notice of violation. While these documents are undoubtedly useful for numerous purposes, they should not serve as the primary source of evidence in a fault-finding determination. Such use of these documents would be analogous to using evidence of subsequent repairs and design modifications for the purpose of showing that the original design was faulty. This would clearly violate Florida's strong public policy in favor of post accident investigations.

We need not consider appellant's other points on appeal.

Order no. 9775 is hereby reversed and this cause is remanded to the PSC for reconsideration in light of the views expressed in this opinion.

On remand, briefs were filed with the Commission and oral arguments were heard on March 1, 1983.

After considering its Staff's written recommendation and review of the entire record, the Commission panel voted unanimously that the Utility had failed to adequately plan the test weight move and supervise the personnel responsible for executing that activity and, further, that as a consequence of that failure, \$11,056,000 of replacement fuel costs had been imprudently incurred. The Commission ordered that the \$11,056,000 was to be refunded to the Utility's customers with accrued interest. Order No. 12240, which was issued on July 13, 1983, reimposed the refund requirement and specifically stated at page 1:

On reconsideration of the record in this case, we find that there is a basis, independent of the NRC and NGRC documents, for determining that the procedures governing the work activity involving the use of the test weight device were deficient, that the planning and supervision of the project were inadequate and, therefore, that the \$11,056,000 of related replacement fuel costs were not prudently and reasonably incurred and should be refunded. The Commission further believes that it can rely on the NRC and NGRC documents as secondary sources of evidence in requiring a refund in this case.

By this appeal, FPC seeks this Court's review of Order No. 12240.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Appellant's statement of the facts is both impermissibly argumentative and not sufficiently complete to adequately appraise the Court of the facts surrounding this case.

Accordingly, Appellee offers the following as being more descriptive of the facts.

Florida Power Corporation's Crystal River No. 3 nuclear generating unit was placed into commercial service on March 13, 1977 at an estimated cost of over \$404 million. petition seeking additional revenues to cover CR3's operating costs, FPC alleged that the plant's operation would result in fuel costs savings, based on then current fuel costs, of over \$96 million per year. Less than a year later, on February 17, 1978, certain of the unit's instrumentation indicated that portions of the reactor's fuel core were "burning hotter" than the rest of the reactor and that there were certain "loose parts" within the water system that cooled the reactor. Notwithstanding these indications, FPC continued to operate CR3 at reduced power levels until March 3, 1978, when it was completely shutdown. [T-10, 22].

As soon as CR3 went out of service, FPC was required to replace the unit's nuclear-generated electricity with much more expensive coal or oil-fired generation from other sources. To calculate the replacement energy costs

experienced during this outage, the Utility performed a computer production costing simulation which compared the actual replacement fuel costs to the nuclear fuel costs that would have been experienced had CR3 continued to operate. The resulting differential or the additional amount borne by FPC's customers through FPC's fuel adjustment clause was approximately \$59 million for the entire outage.

The initial "loose parts" problem which initiated the forced outage was caused by the failure of devices called "lumped burnable poison rod assemblies (LBPR)." [T-11]. Investigation revealed that the coupling device holding one of these assemblies failed, allowing pieces of the assembly to travel through the reactor coolant system, which, ultimately, damaged the delicate tube ends of a huge heat exchanger known as the "B" once-through steam generator [T-11]. Following the removal of CR3 from service, FPC's primary task was to remove the debris produced by the loose parts, repair the damaged steam generator tubes, and refuel the reactor. Although the Commission found that the source of the loose parts outage was a design defect generic to all Babcock and Wilcox (B&W) designed units, it did not require FPC, which had selected B&W, to refund any of the replacement fuel costs directly attributable to the initial failure. Rather, the Commission stated:

We anticipate that Florida Power Corporation will seek the fullest possible recourse against B&W to recover damages sustained as a result of the

failure of the LBPR's and intend to follow its progress in that regard. (Page 2, Order No. 9775).

The Dropped Test Weight Incident

During the 1978 forced outage, FPC found it necessary to remove the nuclear fuel assemblies from the reactor core in order to inspect and clean the reactor. [T-23]. removed, the highly radioactive fuel assemblies were stored in the "spent fuel storage pool", which is located in a building adjacent to the reactor containment building and which contains underwater storage racks for the safe placement of the fuel assemblies. Transport of the fuel assemblies between the two buildings is via one of two fuel transfer canals ("X" and "Y"). The water-filled transfer canals have track-mounted, motor driven carriages. fuel assemblies are loaded in the fuel transfer carriages, an "upender" device on the transfer carriage is raised vertically to accept the assemblies and is then lowered horizontally for transit. Upon reaching its destination, the carriage upender is again raised to the vertical so that the fuel assembly can be removed. All of the fuel transfer movements are accomplished under water to take advantage of the water's shielding effect on radiation.

During the 1978 outage, both the X and Y carriages suffered frequent misalignments with their tracks, which caused the carriages to jam or otherwise operate irradically. [T-1033, 1637]. By early June, 1978, FPC's

repair activities had progressed to the point that 13 nuclear fuel assemblies had been removed from the spent fuel storage pool and reloaded in the reactor core. [T-974, 1637]. However, transfer of the balance of the unit's 177 fuel assemblies had been temporarily halted by renewed fuel transfer mechanism problems. [T-974, 1637]. However, by June 8, repairs to the Y transfer carriage had been completed and the FPC personnel determined that the carriage should be tested with a simulated load, rather than risk having the carriage fail in the transfer tunnel while loaded with an irradiated fuel assembly.

To test the transfer mechanism, Mr. Jim Hollis, a Planning Engineer from the Maintenance Department, instructed Mr. Michael Collins, [T-959] a Plant Engineer assigned to the repair of the fuel transfer mechanism, to place the test weight device in the Y upender so that the operability of the transfer mechanism could be tested the next day. In giving these instruction, Hollis directed

¹The test weight device was never intended as a simulator or realistic training substitute for a fuel assembly. The proper simulator was the "dummy" fuel assembly, which was an inert duplicate of the live fuel assemblies, but which was not then available because stuck in the malfunctioning X transfer canal. (T-1291, 1808). The test weight device is similar to a fuel assembly in length and diameter, but is cylindrical in shape and not square in cross-section like the fuel assemblies. (T-961). It is about 16 feet in length and eight inches indiameter.

that Collins move the test weight device using one of several hooks he would find in the spent fuel pool area. (T-960). After having examined the available hook at the job site, Collins and Mr. Tom Wayble, a Refueling Supervisor, decided not to use the Utility-fabricated hook

 $^{^{1}}$ (Cont'd) At 2080 pounds, (T-968) the test weight is heavier than the 1550 pound fuel assemblies and is, unlike the fuel assemblies, bottom heavy. The test weight was specifically fabricated by FPC to test the new fuel elevator prior to the commercial operation of the plant. (T-1689). Since the new fuel elevator moves fuel assemblies in a vertical plane, the bottom-heavy nature of the test weight was not significant. Placed horizontally in a transfer carriage, however, the uneven weight distribution made a poor substitute for a fuel assembly with its even weight distribution. (T-961, 1034-1035). Unlike the fuel assemblies and the dummy fuel assembly, which was then stuck in the X transfer canal, (T-1291) the test weight did not have special lifting receptacles in its top to which the fuel handling bridge's specialized grappling fingers could securely lock. (T-1808, 1809). Instead, the test weight had a 3/4 inch eye bolt welded to its top, (T-961, 962) which precluded its being transported by the specialized fuel handling bridge.

because it was not "stout enough". [T-960]. ² Because the test weight device was then out of the water on the pool area floor, Collins and his crew attached a wire rope sling, which was tagged as to its lifting strength, to the test weight device with a U-shaped shackle by bolting it through the test weight's eyebolt. [T-964, 966, 968]. Attaching the free end of the sling to the auxiliary building's fuel handling crane, which runs north and south, the test weight device was moved some distance and then transferred to the missile shield crane, which runs east and west, in order to move it to the west side of the spent fuel pool. [T-955-974].

Once transferred to the missile shield crane, the test weight device was, with the aid of underwater divers, lowered into the transfer mechanism's upender. The divers then unbolted the shackle and removed it from the eyebolt of the test weight device. Although the test weight was then

²This specific hook was one of two identical hooks that had been fabricated at the generating plant from stainless steel rods about 3/8 to 1/2 inch in diameter and which were approximately one foot in length from the eye formed at the top to the bottom of the "fish hook" type bend. The hooks had been fabricated at the plant site specifically for the purpose of lifting the transfer carriage air drive motors, which weighed from 100 to 150 pounds. (T-968) The hooks, which were not imprinted, or otherwise labeled, with their maximum safe lifting capacity (T-1289) were stored in and about the spent fuel pool area.

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